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[REDACTED]
April 10, 2003

[REDACTED]

[REDACTED]                                                                                                   

                                                                                                      RE:  MV00002336
                                                                                                  [REDACTED] 



([REDACTED])
                                                                                                  [REDACTED]
                                                                                                  $1,000.00

Dear Mr. [REDACTED]:

The Commanding Officer, Coast Guard Hearing Office, Arlington, Virginia, has forwarded the file in Civil Penalty Case MV00002336, which includeds your appeal as operator of the [REDACTED] ([REDACTED]).  The appeal is from the action of the Hearing Officer in assessing a $1,000.00 penalty for the following violation:

	Law/Regulation
	Nature of Violation
	Assessed Penalty

	46 USC 2302(c)
	Operating a vessel while intoxicated.
	$1,000.00


The violation was observed on April 29, 2000, when Coast Guard Boarding Officers boarded the [REDACTED] while it was underway approximately .5 nautical miles from Tank Island, in the Gulf of Mexico near Key West, Florida.  

On appeal, you do not specifically address the violation, however, you “contest the ruling of the ALJ.”  To that end, you assert that you were “still incarserated (sic) and the disposition of the criminal case…[was]…still undetermined.”  You further contend that you had been “transported to prison” and that you did not know when the Florida criminal case would be resolved.  Finally, when you filed your notice of appeal, you requested an extension of time “so that the criminal charge…[could reach]…a disposition” and asserted that you expected the criminal charge to “conclude” sometime after your release from prison on March 18, 2002.  Your appeal is denied for the reasons noted below.    

The Coast Guard's civil penalty program is a critical element in the enforcement of numerous marine safety and environmental laws.  The civil penalty process is remedial in nature and is designed to achieve compliance through either the issuance of warnings or the assessment of monetary penalties by Coast Guard Hearing Officers when violations are proved.  Procedural rules, at 33 CFR 1.07, are designed to ensure that parties are afforded maximum due process during informal adjudicative proceedings.  Thus, contrary to your assertion, an Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) did not issue a decision in the instant case.  Instead, the matter was handled by a Coast Guard Hearing Officer whose actions were, as I indicated above, governed by the procedures set forth at 33 CFR 1.07, not the more formal administrative procedures governing the actions of ALJs.  

I will now turn my attention to the request for extension of time contained in your “Notice of Appeal.”  A careful review of the Coast Guard’s civil penalty procedures, noted above, makes clear that there is no provision specifically allowing me to grant an extension of time following the issuance of the Hearing Officer’s final decision.  Indeed, 33 CFR 1.07-75 makes clear that, on appeal, I “may affirm, reverse, or modify the decision [of the Hearing Officer], or remand the case for new or additional proceedings.”  Considering the facts of this case, my only inclination is to conclude this case now.  Nevertheless, in response to your appeal and in the instance of fairness, I have carefully reviewed the entire record to ensure there is substantial evidence to support the Hearing Officer’s final decision.  While I find that there is substantial evidence to support the Hearing Officer’s conclusion that you were intoxicated at the time of the Coast Guard boarding, I will address the issues that you raised throughout the course of the proceedings below.  

First, in several of your letters to the Hearing Officer, you asserted that this matter should not be completed until the Florida criminal action against you was resolved.  This assertion is without merit.  The Coast Guard's actions in this case are in no way barred by any of the proceedings in the related state action.  The waters of the Gulf of Mexico are subject to concurrent Federal and state jurisdiction.  As such, the Coast Guard has jurisdiction to assess an administrative civil penalty against you without regard to any action by the State of Florida.  Indeed, although the Hearing Officers granted several extensions of time to allow the criminal matter to be completed, there is simply no procedural requirement in effect that compels them to do so.  

Next, you contend that the Coast Guard boarding officers released you after you “successfully” completed the Field Sobriety Tests (FSTs) and that, as a consequence, you were allowed to consume additional alcoholic beverages while other law enforcement agencies were contacted and before the Coast Guard charged you with boating while intoxicated.  To that end, you assert that the “N” written on the Coast Guard Form 4100 boarding Report in the “Law Enforcement Action Taken” box proves both that no law enforcement action was taken against you and that your version of the events is correct.  I do not agree.  

Contrary to your assertion, the “N” written in the “Law Enforcement Action Taken” box indicates that “Notice of the Violation” was given to you at the completion of the boarding.  That notice was the original copy of the Coast Guard Form 4100 Boarding Report issued to you at the time of the boarding.  Furthermore, although you contend that you were allowed to consume additional alcoholic beverages following the completion of the boarding, I see nothing in the record to support your assertion.  The decision by you to consume additional alcohol was not “authorized” by the Coast Guard but simply a personal decision on your part.  However, even if I believed your assertion to be true, your consumption of additional alcoholic beverages after the completion of the Coast Guard boarding would have no impact on this case.  The Field Sobriety Test Performance Report contained in the record indicates that the Coast Guard determined that you were intoxicated based on the boarding officer’s physical observations of you and your performance on a variety of the FSTs.  The Coast Guard did not administer a Breathalyzer test on you.  Instead, after the Coast Guard determined that you were intoxicated, they called the [REDACTED] who administered additional sobriety tests, including a Breathalyzer test, and subsequently arrested you for violating Florida’s laws.  Because this case is civil in nature, the Coast Guard did not and, in fact, could not arrest you for your violation.  Thus, when the boarding officers cited you for boating while intoxicated and terminated the voyage, their portion of the boarding was completed.    

Next, you contend, contrary to the statements of the boarding officers, that you were not federally cited for the violation.  You cite a Florida Statute (Fla. Stat. Ann. § 327.74 (West 1995)), and assert that, if you were cited federally, a “ticket” should have been issued.  You conclude that, because that “ticket” was not issued, the matter should be dismissed.  I do not agree.  As I noted above, when the boarding officers gave you a copy of the Coast Guard Form 4100 boarding report, which constituted your notification of the violation and served as your “ticket.”  Therefore, because the Coast Guard is a federal agency and because you were cited with violation a federal statute, 46 USC 2302(c), you were federally cited for the violation. 

Finally, in your letter to the Hearing Officer dated October 4, 2001, you asserted that the Coast Guard boarding officers involved in this case, (BM2 [REDACTED] and BM [REDACTED]), were guilty of “professional negligence for failing to inform…[you]…of an arrest, failure to supervise…[you]…and allow you to return to the vessel and consume alcoholic beverages…[and that] that act…prejudiced…[you]…inasmuch as their lawful release from…custody and supervision authorized…[you]…to consume alcoholic beverages at the vessel, under the erroneous lawful instruction that ‘you are free to go.’”  As I noted above, there is simply no evidence in the record to support your assertion.  Furthermore, it is the Hearing Officer’s responsibility to decide the reliability and credibility of evidence and resolve conflicts in evidence.  I find no abuse of discretion in the Hearing Officer’s determination that you were intoxicated.     

I will now address the violation in issue.  33 CFR 95.030 makes clear that “[a]cceptable evidence of intoxication includes, but is not limited to: (a) Personal observation of an individual’s manner, disposition, speech, muscular movement, general appearance, or behavior; or (b) A chemical test.”  33 CFR 95.020(c) further provides that an individual is considered intoxicated when “[t]he individual is operating any vessel and the effect of the intoxicant(s) consumed by the individual on the person’s manner, disposition, speech, muscular movement, general appearance or behavior is apparent by observation.”  Contrary to your assertions, the record indicates that there is substantial evidence in the record to support the Hearing Officer’s determination that you were intoxicated at the time of the boarding.  The Boarding report shows that you he had a “strong” odor of alcoholic beverage on your breath and that your speech was both “mumbled” and “slurred”.  The report further indicates that your face was “flushed” and that your eyes were “watery”.  In addition, the report indicates that, during the boarding, you experienced mood swings and that your attitude fluctuated between “insulting” and “cooperative”.    

Although you contend that you “passed” all of the Coast Guard’s sobriety tests, the Boarding Report indicates that you performed poorly on all six FSTs administered.  In both the “Alphabet Test” and the “Backwards Count” test, you hesitated.  In the “Finger Count” test, you “did not speed up,” and improperly touched and counted your fingers.  Likewise, in the “Palm Pat” test, you improperly counted, slid you hand and “got confused” and were “[u]nable to complete” the test.  In the “Finger to Nose” test, you did not use the proper finger and, finally, in the “Horizontal Gaze Nystagmus” test, you lacked smooth pursuit in both eyes. While I note that each of these factors, alone, might not have been sufficient cause for a conclusion of intoxication, taken together, I am persuaded that the results of the FSTs and the personal observations of the Coast Guard boarding officers concerning your manner, disposition, speech, muscular movement, and behavior constituted substantial evidence for the Hearing Officer to conclude that you were intoxicated.   Therefore, I find the violation proved and will not mitigate the penalty assessed by the Hearing Officer.

Accordingly, I find that there is substantial evidence in the record to support the Hearing Officer’s determination that the violation occurred and that you are the responsible party.  The Hearing Officer’s decision was neither arbitrary nor capricious and is hereby affirmed.  I find the penalty of $1,000.00 rather than the $1,100.00 maximum permitted by statute appropriate in light of the seriousness of the violation.  

In accordance with the regulations governing civil penalty proceedings, 33 CFR 1.07, this decision constitutes final agency action.  Payment of $1,000.00 by check or money order payable to the U.S. Coast Guard is due and should be remitted promptly, accompanied by a copy of this letter.  Send your payment to:

U.S. Coast Guard - Civil Penalties
P.O. Box 100160
Atlanta, GA  30384

Payments received within 30 days will not accrue interest.  However, interest at the annual rate of 4.25% accrues from the date of this letter if payment is not received within 30 days.  Payments received after 30 days will be assessed an administrative charge of $12.00 per month for the cost of collecting the debt.  If the debt remains unpaid for over 90 days, a 6% per annum late payment penalty will be assessed on the balance of the debt, the accrued interest, and administrative costs.

Should you still believe that you are financially unable to pay these penalties, you may request establishment of a payment plan.  Requests for relief should be directed to the Chief, Claims Branch, Maintenance and Logistics Command Pacific, Coast Guard Island, Alameda, California 94501-5100.


                                                   
 
Sincerely,

                                                                  //S//


                                                    

david j. kantor

                                                    

Deputy Chief,

                                                    

Office of Maritime and International Law 
                                                                  By direction of the Commandant

Copy:  Commanding Officer, Coast Guard Hearing Office 
            Commanding Officer, Coast Guard Finance Center 
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